
­
.,.

UNITED NATIONS

.....~:~

•

•

GENERAL
ASSEMBLY

Distr.
GEllERAL

A!AC.97/SR.4.
15 June 1959
ENGLISH
ORIGI1UtL: Fimlt'C.u .

..

UNITED I~.ATIONS COMflUSSION ON PERMANENT' SOVEREIGJlTY
OVER NATURAL RESOURCES

First Session

SUMMJI.RY RECORD OF THE FOURrH MEETING

Held at HeadqU2.rters, New York,
on.T};lursday, 21 May 1959, et 10.50 a.m.

CONTENTS

. Programme and organiza.tion ot the work ot the Commission
(A/AC.9T/l, 2 a.nd 3) (continued)

" .
"

," ..... '

." .' ';~ .
~~..~~. ~ ':. .

59-13710 I··.



Mr. RAYMOND
Representativaa of GJ)ecie.lized asencies:

Mr. lomTALL

Mr. ACHARYA
Secretariat: Mr. SCHACHTER

Mr. FABRY

1;./ Jt.0. ';( I ur.t.-t
English
Page 2

YRESENT:
Chairman:

~'Pl?0rteur:

Members:

Mr.. GAMBOA

Mr.. ABDEL-GHANI

Mr. PAZHWAK

Mr.. PDIOCBEr

Mr•.HEF.RARTE

Mr. SCHUBMANN

Mr.. BRILLANTES

Mr. PETREN

Mr. SAPOZHNIKOV

(Philippines)

United Ara.b Republic

Afghanistan

Chile

Guatemala
Netherlands

Ph:tlippines
Swed~ln

Uhion of Soviet SOcialist
Republics

united states of America.

Internationa.l Labour Organisation
Food and Agriculture Organization

Director, General Legal Division

secretary of the Commission

I···

t

•



AI AIJ.':/ f/W:t.4
English
pege 3

. PROGRAMME AND ORGANIZATION OF THE WORK OF THE COMMISSION (A/AC.97/l, 2 and 3)
(contin~)

Mr. PAZIDlAK (Afghanistan) said that the Commission must orgB11ize its

• work with a view to the most effective performance of the task entrusted to

it by the General Assembly. Referring to oper&tive paragraphs 1 and 2 of

General Assembly resolution 1314 (XIII), he said that the Commission had to decide,

firstly, who was to undertake the task of securing the necessary information;

secondly, what aspects of the question were to be covered by the proposed survey;

thirdly, what areas of the world should be inclUded, and fourthly, the date by

which the survey should be completed to enable the Commissic":l to maks' the

necessary recommendations.

The Afghan delegation considered that the Secx~tariat could be asked to

assemble the necessary information, with the co-operation of the Governments

of Member states, the regional economic commissions end the specialized agencies.

He regretted that the specialized agencies had not ShOliO greater interest in

such an important question and found it surprising that they had given no

explanation of their non-participation, in spite of the General Assembly's

explicit invitation; he considered that appropriate measures should be taken

to request an explanation.

The Commission would not be able to make practical and realistic

recommendations unless it had comprehensive information on all aFpects of the

question, and it must have a full knOWledge of the prevailing conditions if

it was to be able to carry out its taslt. Something more than a mere compilation

of existing legislation was clearly reqUired and the Commission should be able

to count on the co-operation of both the Office of legal Affairs and the

Department of Economic and Social Affairs 0

With regard to the geographical scope of the study, the Afghan delegation

consider-ed that attention should be concentrated on the under-developed areas

and the Non-Selt-Governing Territorier·o It should be emphasized tha.t the latter

term, as used in the United Nations did not include certain areas which 1t was

nevertheless important not to exclUde from a study r.f the exercise of t.he right

of peoples and. nations to self-determination. That point should not be

overlooked, since the Goneral Assembly had decided to esta.blish the Commission

I .. ·



A/AI;.';)(/~1i.4

English
Page 4-

(Mr. Pazhwak, Afghan1at~)

precisely in order that there should be a body competent to deal with certain

questions that were outside the terms of referenceo! other bodies. The study

should also cover all areas of the world.

The Afghan delegation had no specific suggestion to make regarding the

number of sessions the Commission should hold or on the time-table of its work.

The Secretariat should, however, be given enough time to make a comprehensive

study and should have clear terms of r-efe'rence. He would put forward suggestions

on those points attha end of the general debate.

In conclusion, he said that hie delegation, which was aware of the cantribution

that international co-operat:f.on could make to the economic development ot the

under-doveloped countries anll staunchly supported the right of peoples to

self-determination, felt in duty"bound to call on all members of the Commission,

especially the representatives of the economically developed countries, to

organize the Commission's work in such a way as to facilitate ~ractical

recommendations that would effectively strengthen the permanent sovereignty

of peoples and nations over their natural "~alth and resources.

Mr. ABDEL-GHANI (United Arab Republic) said that the General Assembly

had established the Commission and defined its terms of reference in

resolution l31~ (XIII), because the need h~d been felt to look into a new and

far-reaching subject of which no detailed stUdy had th~s far been made. The

full scope of that resolution could be understood only in relation to the

provisions of the Charter, in particular Article 13, Which defined t~e purpose of

studies initiated and recommendations made by the General AssemblYI end

Article 55 on international economic and social co-operation. In carrying out

its task, the Co~ission should be guided by those two Articles; in other words,

the principal p'L:.!1lose of the survey that the Commission had been asked to make

should be to promote peaceful and friendly relations among nations based on

rea~ect for the principle of equal rights and self-~etermination of ~oples, from

bo":.b. the economic and ;ol1tical stCl:.ti?oi~t.

The u~der~develo~ed countries) hai refuted the idea that exercizing the right

of economic 6elf-dete~ination was likely to hinder the flow of' foreign capital

to their countries. T~ose Governments were taking all possible measures to

encourage foreign investrr.ents necessary for their economic developn:ent. In that

/ ...

•

•



•

•

AIAC. 97ISR.l~
English
Page 5

(Mr. Abdel-Ghani, United Arab Republic)

connexion he referred to the varlous measures taken to that effect by the Government

of the United Arab Republic. He asserted that Ullholding the inherent right of all

peoples to economic self-determination was an effective way of promoting

international co-operation in the economic field and c~nsequently, for accelerating

the process of economic development of the under-developed countries.

\'Iith regard to the scope and nature of the survey, he agreed m.th the

representative of the Soviet Union that the Commission should not confine itself to

a purely academic study and that its work should cover the practica.l as "'ell as the

legal aspects of the question. Such an interpretation. was in accordance both with

the General Assembly resolution and with the statement by the Secretary-General' s

repl'esentative. The General Assembly had not confined itself in its resolution

solely to the legal aspects of the question, since it had stressed the importance

of international co-operation in the economic development of under-developed

countries and had invited th~ co-operation of the regional economic commissions and

the specialized agencies.

During the general debate, several members of the Commission had. attempted to

define the principles that should guide the Secretariat, a matter in which the

delegation of the United Arab RepUblic also wished to comment. Firstly, although

there were many sources of informatioIl open to the Secretariat, it should not

overlook one of the most readily available, namely, United Nations documents. The

General Assembly had adopted several resolutions relating dil~ctly or indirectly to

the task entrusted to the Commission, such as resolution 626 (VII) on the right to

exploit freely natural "~alth and resources, Economic and Social Council

resolution 144 C (VII) on the restoration and development of the economy of the

countries of Asia and the Far East, and the preamble of General Assembly

resolution 523 (VI) on integrated economic development and commercial agreements.

It would be remembered that in a well-known nationalization case a Rome court had

based its decision on General Assembly resolution 626 (VII); the General Assembly's

recommandations were thus not entirely '\-11thout effect) and the Secretariat, rather

than confining itself to a mere compilation, should attemp·c to determine how far

those recommendations were serving to strengthen the right of peoples to self­

determination and their sovereigntiy over their natural resources.

It 'Was essential that the survey should include No~-Self--Governingand Trust

Territories, which were of particuIar concelU to the United Nations. The General

Assembly had referred in its resolutions to the permanent oovereignty of I ...

,
":;1



A/AC.97/SR.'H;
English
Page 6
(Mr. Abde~-Ghe.ni, United Arab Republic)

"peoples and nations I! : not to that of independent States. In so' doing, the •

Assembly had based itselt on the draft Covenants on Human Rights, and in that

connexion it should be recalled that the right of peoples to economic self- •

determination v~s explicitly recognized in the text adopted by the Third Committee,

as it had also been in the original text of the Commission 011 Human Rights. The
.,' .

general debate had shown that there was no difference of opinion in the Commission

oh that point; it was therefore only logical that the proposed survey should deal

with the extent to which dependent peoples eftecthrely exercised their right of
.~ • ... • . t • .

sovereignty over their natural wealth. Relevan~ l..'lf~rmatio!'!; on that question was

contained in the records of the Trusteeship Council, the~ourth Committee of the

General Assembly, and the'Committee on Information from'Nc.n-Self-Governing

Territ'ories, and also in' p~titions sUbmitt'ed to the United Nations. The'. ..' . ,
Trusteeship Council, had, in particular, considered two cases of flagrant violation

of the right of permanent sovereignty:over naturai wealth and resource'~, one

concerning a trihe in Tanganyika, and the other the people ot the Territory of

Nauru. In addition, the Committee ~n South 'west Africa would be'sub~itting to the.. . .... . . .
General Assembly a report which should certainly be lncluded amo~g the docljffients

to be studied.

It would also be appropriate to'examine the regional' arrangements which in

some respects governed the exercise of the ;ight of sovereignty over certain
" , .

natural resources. States parties to such new tYl1es .of agreement as the treaties

establishing the European Coal and Steel Community, EURATOM or the European

Economic Community voluntarily relinqUished part of their sovereignty over their
, . '

natural r(~sources and renounced the exercise ef certain. of their righ~s, in. the

common interest. But proposals by certain Powers tha~ 'the Non-Self-Governing

Territorie~ they administered should participate in such 'a.rranBementacould hardly
, ,

be described as a voluntary relinquishment of sovereignty by those Territories.
.. I • " •

Those were questions to which the Commission would have to devote its attention.

The Commission should also eXP.Jlline international agreements by which States. ' .
]?ermitted aliens to exploit certain natural resources. In conducting such an

investigation, the Commission should remember that the world did not stand,still,

and that the :I.dea that such agreements "rere something immutable and sacrosanct 'WaS

out or date. Just as States amended their laws or enacted new laws to meet new

/ ...



A/AC.97/SR.4
English
Page 7

(Mr. Abdel-Ghani, United Arab Republic)

developments, so in the intel'national field small nations now mshed to free

themselves of agreements concluded at a period when circumstances had been entirel)"

different from those of today, and which gave foreign enterprises certain rights

and concessions which ll'ere incompatible With the interests of the national economy.

Mr. BRILLAIiTES (Philippines) said that in order to organize its work

the Commission must know exactly what it could and should do. Under General

Assembly resolution 1.314 (XIII) its purpose was twofold: to conduct a survey

and, "where necessary", to make recommendations.

Such a survey should clearly be related to facts dertved from the laws and

agreements in torce. Member Governments, the regional commissions and the

specialized agencies could be asked ~o co-operate in obtaining them. It would be

necessary to gather all information of value bearing on the constitutions and laws

of States and on international treaties and agreements,; but it would also be

necessary to show how such texts were interpreted and applied in practice" both

na.tionally and internationally, and to make a sl'8cial stUdy of Judicial"

administrative and arbitral decisions.

The Commission should also bear in mind the tact that it would ha"J,"g to make

recommendations" and that they would necessarily depend upon the information end

data obtained. The Commission must decide at the outset just what kind of'

information it wanted" since it would be unable to submit suitable recommendations

unless it yiBS in ];lossession of tull inf'ormation on the present situation. It was

in appraising that situation that the real difficulties would arise.

He asked who would decide whether the right of sovereignty needed

strengthening. If that was the responsibility of the peoples and nations

concerned, it might well be asked whether it was not also for them to propose the

measures to be taken to that end. If} on the other hand, the Comnission were to

rule on the question, 'Would it not be obliged to assume the role of spokesman for

the people or nation concerned, or even that of jUdge~

General Assembly resolution 1;14 (XIII) referred to the importance of

international co-operation in the economic development of under-developed areas.

It woe e.vident that co-operation could not be unila.teral and it was also clear

that the nation concerned was the best jUdge of what its economic developr"'£nt

should be and how it should be achieved. The Genera.l Assembly resolution

I ...



A/AC.97/SR.4
English
Page 8

(Mr. Brillantes,.Philippines).. . , -

established a linkbetv.~en sovereianty and economic development; that link

consisted of :due regard tor the rights of Stal,es and international co-operatien.

The quefition arose whether such international cv -operation was compatible With the .

pe~ent sovereignty of'peoples and nations over their natural l~sourcesl whether

it amounted to a derogation from such sovereignty or Whether it constituted an

exercise of such sovereignty. The Charter regarded international co-oper!:.tioll as

both a right and a duty. It affirmed both the importance .of in'tern~tion~.l
t • .t ...

co-operation in solving international problems of an economic , ~c~ial, c~~tural o~

humanitarian cha!~.c;:t~r.(ArticJ.e 1 C,) and the principle p£ sovereign eq1,le.lity, , ,

(Article 2 (1»; It y,.~ evident that international co-operation coulq best b~
, ,

promoted by the application of the principle of sovereign e~Jality but, in the case
t <. .' . .. ,.... .

ef the economic development of undel'-develo~d a!eas and of' the sovereignty of their
." ... ."

peoples over their natural wealth I it was dOl,\bt~ whether it '''ould pe as easy to. ......
apply that principle as it was to affirm it.. . ." ,

The C01nmisslon should remember that nations w-ere liYing in an international
'. '

community Which was more closely inter-dependent than ever bef'~re, end it should
, "

not overlook the fact that international co-operation must be accepted voluntarily
, .

and not imposed. In underta'dng the ,survey and in drafting its recommendations I

it should mai.ntain a balance between zeal e."nd !;lard f'~ts:' )ii~ delegation regarded

the plan of study proposed by the Secretariat as a useful gui4e , though n9t
, ... .. • .: i,· ,.. •...

necessarily exclusive of other approaches.
'"; .,;.- .. .. .. ."

Mr. SCHUmwm (Ne~herlands) said tha.t he would speak at greater le.ngth

wheu the Commission dealt With the substeulce of the s~bject at the next session ~d

'When the Secretariat had provided it With th~ necessary dCLta.. He was in agreamel1t

with the Director of the \:. (l.f~ral Legal DiYisionconcernin~ the documentat~Qn th~·.

Secretariat uould be able ... 0 prpvide. In hif} opinion,. such documentation should,

contain a comprehensive fI'UlIimE'.ry of national laws and regula:Gi,ons go:vemi1;lS the "

ownership and use of land, subsotl and water reSOUl'cea in Member..States, v.'ith

special emphasis on the me~sures pertaining to the l'iBhtsof fOl'eign n.8ti,onals to

own or exploit the natural resources of those countries end the condi.ticn$ under.

which such rights wel'e granted. It· ahoy-lOo; a.lso contain a study of bilat.elu and.

multilateral treaties concerned w'ith· rights granted to the nationals of

one State to engage in gainful occupations or to establish ental"'!lrises

in the 'territory of another) and vdth the concitions Ullder which such

na.tionals could. exploit the natul'al resources of the ol.:her State. In addition, / •••

•



A/Ac'97/sR.4
English
Page 9

(Mr. Schurmann, Netherlands

there should be a study of 1nterna1!ion~1 law relating to sovereignty over natural. .
wealth and the rights and obligations of States in the field of foreign investment~.

. . "\ . .
• As had been poi~ted out, in par~icule.r by the Swedish representative, it was

important, und~r the terms of' rEl~olution 1314 (XIII) that the documentation should. . ~~ .. .'

enable the Comm:!.t1sion to make a full survey of international rules governing
.,. .

exproprie.tion, the property rights of foreign nationals and the obligation to

avoid dis~rimination and to pay prompt,adequate and effective compensation.

If the Secretari&t could fUr.nish the Commission With documentation along

th~6e lines, the Commission ~uld be able to, submit the questions of Bubs-cance

to a thorough deba.te.

Mr.• SAPOZHNIKOV (Union of Soviet, Socialist Republics) recalled" the

comnents he had made at the second meeting on the document submitted' by the

Secretariat (A/AC.97/3).

The eurvey called for un·X:}!· General' Assembly resolution 1314 (XIII) did not

need 'vo dea,l With the form of ownership Within States, a ·matter ~xclusively

within their 0'WIl jurisdiction; it should be kept on a strictly intez'Dational

plane. The Secretariat's agreement on that point was not apparent from the summary

record of the meeting in question and he wished it to be confirmed.

. rt was essential that th~ documentation should go beyond a mere enumeration

of legal tt"xts j other delegat:l<>ns had a.lready stated that they wanted factua.l

informatiun and an account of the· real e1tuation. The survey should show whether

there had been any violations of the principle of sovereignty over .natural lo.-ealth .'

and, if so, 'What they 'Were. Without such informa.tion, the Commission would be

unable to make recommenda.tions. Some very valuable indicati ons of the nature of

such violations 'Were alre~dy. a",-railable; such violations could be cloaked with

legality. Some foreign companies exceeded the rights granted to them urlder

agreements, or the agreements deliberately disguised their complete domination. He

agreed With the observations submitted to the Commission on the evolution of

interna.tional law. It was clear .tha.t Bome agreements "'"ere out of da.te.

Certain pro~',ssI and in particular that of the alienation' of land, wre very

acute in the Non..self-Governing Territories. Under discrimina.tory. laws or even

Without any legal justification, some Administering Authorities took their lands

away from the indigenous inhabitants in order to lease them to foreign companies,

I.".

I



A/AC..97/sa.4
English
Page 10

(Mr. Sapozbnikov, ussa)

which thus secured the lionls share for themselves while the people lived under

appalling conditions. In some cases their very existence was threatened by the

complete exhaustion of their resources. The representa.tive of the United Arab

Republic had mentioned Nauru and South West Africa as specific examples. Others

could be given. Moreover, that repreaentati~'s comm.ents on the Non-Self •.Governing

Territories in the European Economic Community were completely justified. All those

examples s~rved to show that the survey could not be solely legal and that it ought

to contain tactual information which would enable the Commission to torm an opinion.

The work ot the Secretariat and of the Commission itself should be directed to that

end.

Regarding the organization of the work, the United States representative had

said that the Secretariat sbouldsend a questionnaire t) Governments. Thdt would,

however, tie its hands, and it sbould be free to use all the means at its disposal

for the collect!. on of tbe necessary information. If, in some cases, the

Secretariat felt it would serve a useful purpose to approach a Government, there i~S

no objection to its BO doing. The co-operation of the regional econemic commi8sions

and the specialized agencies would also be valuable, and it was to be regretted that

some of tbe latter w~re not represented.

In any case, it was too early to settle all the q,uestions at issue and it would

be better to concentrate on the broad outlines of the survey.

From the prcctical point of view it 'Would be advisable to concentrate especially

on the regioas in which the problem occurred in the most acute form. Mainly on

practical grounds, but also for ·reasons which went to the very heart of the problem,

it was necessary to devote attention first of all to the under-developed countries

and the Non-Seli'..Qoverning and Tru.st Territories, while it was perhaps unnecessary

to carry out an inquiry in the highly develo!,ed countries, s'L'.ch as the U:.1ited Sta.tes

and Bome European countries. It was not a question of restricti~8' the study

! :priori but of selecting the most practical a:pproachj if the Secretariat collected

the ty:pe of documentation he bad indicated, namely, a documentation which was not

confined to the legal as:pect of the probl~m, the Commission would have a sound basis

for its decisions.

/ ...



•

A!AC.97/SR.4
English
Page 11,

Mr. RAYMOND (UI1oit~d States. of .(uneric~)"e~ple.in~dthat ,he had never
" ..~ '. ,. I '0

intended that any restriction. shQuld be placed on the. Secretariat~s working mnthods.
. '. " ..

The' Se-cretarie.t '~hotild :be"~bsolutely fl'e'e,1 .if the ~eed aro,se, to' fill in ~he ga.ps

in repn~s" from Governments ,by drawing on, informati~n fro~ other sources. He had

meant merei~ tbat" al.l Stat~s Sh~~i.d be siven the opportunity to provide thE!'

Secretariat with in.t'ormatio~ on their legislation.

As reference had been made to the need to take into account other General

Assembly resolutions which had' a bearing' on the Commission "s survey, he, drew,

attention to the tern;s of Gener~ Assembly resolution 1318 (XIII), concerning. the

proinoiiou of the interna.tion~l flow of private capital~ The report whic.h the

SecretarY-General was requested to prepare under that resolution would certainly

be of great interest to the Commission, since it dealt with onaof the questioDs. :- .

with which it had to concern itself. Reports of this tyt;e would be more useful

to the Commission than an attempt by the Secretary-aeneral to report on violations.., '

With regard to alleged violations, one should not o\~rlook the fact that neither

the Commission ~or the Secretariat was a judicial body.

Mr.• METALL.. (In~~rnatione.l Labour Organisation) said that ·the lLO had

eho~n its great interest in the Commission's delibera~ions by sending a
.' . .. .': .

representative to the curren~ session. .Both the International Lal;lour Organisation

and the International Labour Offic~ would deem it a. ,duty and a :p~ea.sure to

colle.bol"Rte with the Commission and the Secretariat and,. inter alia, were m~ing
• < •

available to them the docun:entation they had assembled. .

Mr. SCHACHTER (Secretariat) assured the USSR representative that he

agreed inth him on the kind of study:'Which. should be undert~\.en and that the
• • s.

summary record would be corrected to'take his observations into account. The

Secretariat's study would be concerned with the right of foreign nationals to O~

or exp'ioit the 'natural rasour'ces of a country not their ovm and on' the ~eans by. ... ,;

'Which the State could control their activities. It was only in so far as the
• !

national legislation applied to foreigners that the Secretariat 'WOuld feel it

should study the :principles alJplicable in each country to the o'WIlership of natural

resources.

As regards the collaboration of the regional economic commissions, to which

the General Assembly resolu.tion had been duly transmitted, he pointed out that they

/ ...



A/AC.97/SR.4
English
Page 12

(Mr. Schachter, Secretariat)

had their O'WIl programmes of work, which were already very heavy, and that neither

the Commission nor the Secretariat could invite them to undertake new SU1"veyS. The

Commission could only request them to ~:ransmit to it the information ",hich they

had already collected or the studies which they 'Were currently engaged in.

While it ~.,a.s true that the agreements on the exploitation of natural

resources Goid not al~{ays reflect the actual facts of the situation, he did not see

how the Secretariat could institute an inquiry into possible violations. Perhaps

the USSR representative had meant that the Commission should undertake such an

investigation. The Secretariat, for its part, had to confine its~lf' to consulting

official pUblications and the documentation available to it and to requesting

information from Governments.

Moreover, the Secretariat's stUdy should not duplicate other reports, such as

the one mentioned by the United States representative or the pUbl1cat1011s on the

Non-Self-Governing Territories. The Secretariat would be able to refer to the

relevant passages in those documents in its study.

Mr. SAPOZHNIKOV (Union of SoViet Socialist Republics) did not think that

the Secretariat should confine itself to obtaining infol~tion from Governments.

There ~re certainly Qther sources on which it would be able to draw, as it did'.
tlhen it prepared the World Economic Survey and other economic studies and reports

on specific problems. The Secretariat would be able to find some information on

questions in which the Commission was interested in the reports of the

. Trusteeship Council mld of the Administering Authorities and in letters from

petitioners.

;{.~. ABDEL.i.GHANI (United Arab RepUblic) expressed the hope that the

Secretariat would transmit to the regional economic commissions the text of the

statements in which the members of the Commission had indicated how anxious they

w~re that those bodies should co-operate With the Commission and what they hoped

to gain from that collaboration.

I···

•



---~~~~~~~----~-.,..,

AIAC.97/SR.4
English
Page 13

(Mr. Abdel-Ghani , United Arab Republic)

Furtherm"lre, since the Commission was an organ of the General Assembly and

was to report to the Economic and Social Council, everything seemed to indicate

I that it could request the regional economic commissions to undertake studies on

permanent sovereignty over natural resources.

The Clt~ said that at the next meeting he would attempt to sum up

the position and the views expressed concerning the study to be made by the

Secretariat, the ques·~:!.ous to be addressed to Governments and possibly to the

specialized agencies 1 and the date of the next session. Those were the three points

on which the Commission had to reach a decision before the end of the current

session.

The meeting rose at 12.50 p.m.

I,.~~

, .. ,:'-":'1,:;1'




